NTC Regulation 190-1\*

Department of the Army Headquarters, National Training Center and Fort Irwin Bldg. 988 Inner Loop Road Fort Irwin, California 92310-5001 17 May 2021

## MILITARY POLICE RETENTION, POSSESSION, STORAGE, TRANSPORT, USE, AND REGISTRATION OF PRIVATELY OWNED WEAPONS AND AMMUNITION

History. This is a revised publication in an electronic format.

**Summary.** This regulation prescribes the policies, responsibilities, and procedures for managing and administrating the retention, possession, storage, transport, use, and registration of privately owned weapons and ammunition at the National Training Center (NTC) & Fort Irwin.

**Applicability.** The policy and guidance prescribed by this regulation applies to all individuals on the Fort Irwin installation.

**Supplementation.** Supplementation of this regulation is prohibited without prior approval from the Directorate of Emergency Services (DES), Fort Irwin, California 92310-5066.

**Suggested Improvements.** Users are invited to send comments and suggested improvements on DA Form 2028 (Recommended Changes to Publications and Blank Forms) directly to the Directorate of Emergency Services (DES), Fort Irwin, California 92310-5066.

Distribution: This regulation is distributed solely through electronic media.

OFFICIAL:

LAURIE L. LOVE Director, Human Resources

Colonel, AR Chief of Staff

\* This regulation supersedes NTC Regulation 190-1, dated 5 April 1999.

# **Table of Contents**

Chapter 1	Paragraph	Page
General		
Purpose	1-1	3
References	1-2	3
Explanation of Abbreviations and Terms	1-3	3
Records Management	1-4	3
Policy	1-5	3
Chapter 2		
Responsibilities		
General	2-1	4
Chapter 3		
Registration		
Applicability	3-1	5
Registration Procedures	3-2	5
Transfer of Ownership	3-3	6
Clearing	3-4	6
Weapons Exempt from Registration	3-5	6
California Law	3-6	6
Chapter 4		
Storage		
Sponsorship	4-1	7
Newly Reporting Soldiers	4-2	7
Storage in Unit Arms Rooms	4-3	7
Removal from Unit Arms Rooms	4-4	8
Residents	4-5	8
Chapter 5		
Transportation		
Vehicle Transport	5-1	8
Concealed Weapons	5-2	9
Chapter 6		
Prohibited Weapons/Accessories		
Prohibited Weapons/Accessories Listing	6-1	9
Storage and Disposition of Prohibited Weapons/Accessories	6-2	9
Appendices		
A. References		10
B. NTC Form 655 Registration of Privately-Owned Firearms		12
C. Memorandum for Removal of Privately Owned Weapon Example		13
Glossary		14

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## Chapter 1 General

## 1-1. Purpose

This regulation establishes procedures and regulations concerning the registration, possession, storage, transport and use of privately owned weapons (POWs) and ammunition on the National Training Center and Fort Irwin Military Installation.

#### 1-2. References

Related publications and prescribed referenced forms are listed in Appendix A.

#### **1-3.** Explanation of abbreviations and terms

Abbreviations and terms used in this regulation are explained in the glossary.

#### 1-4. Records Management

Records created as a result of processes prescribed by this regulation must be identified, maintained and disposed of according to AR 25-400-2, The Army Records Information Management System (ARIMS) and DA Pam 25-403, Guide to Recordkeeping in the Army. Record titles and descriptions are available on the Army Records Information Management System website (https://www.arims.army.mil).

#### 1-5. Policy

a. The registration, possession, storage, transport and use of POWs and ammunition at the National Training Center and Fort Irwin will be controlled by the provisions of this regulation. This regulation is punitive in nature.

b. All personnel possessing, storing, transporting or using POWs and ammunition on Fort Irwin will comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to firearms and ammunition.

c. Any civilian or family member under the age of 18 is prohibited from the use of firearms on Fort Irwin, unless accompanied and supervised by a parent or legal guardian age 18 years or older.

d. Violations of the provisions of this regulation provide a basis for disciplinary action under the Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ) for personnel subject to its provisions. Military and civilian personnel may also be subject to prosecution through the Magistrate Court System, U.S. District Court, or California judicial system.

e. Newly assigned personnel will be briefed on this regulation. All personnel will be made aware of any material changes to this regulation or other guidance concerning this matter by their chains of command.

#### Chapter 2 Responsibilities

#### 2-1. General

a. The Commanding General (CG). The CG has the overall responsibility for the POWs and ammunition program on Fort Irwin. The CG will -

(1) Provide leadership, direction, and supervision over the NTC and Fort Irwin POWs and ammunition program.

(2) Provide written policy regarding registration, possession, storage, transport and use of POWs and ammunition on the NTC and Fort Irwin Military Installation.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

b. The Garrison Commander (GC). The GC has responsibility for administrating key aspects of the POW and ammunition program on Fort Irwin. The GC will -

(1) Provide the capability for the registration of POWs.

(2) Ensure a formal process is implemented to identify, record, and communicate deficiencies associated with the POW and ammunition program during physical security inspections.

c. The Director of Emergency Services (DES). The DES will -

(1) Conduct a background check of personnel registering firearms and inform the responsible commander of the results of the checks.

(2) Operate and maintain a central data base for weapons registration in the Army Law Enforcement Reporting and Tracking System (ALERTS).

d. Commanders/Directors. Commanders/Directors will -

(1) Ensure POWs and ammunition, stored by the unit, are secured in locked containers, separate from military arms, ammunition, and explosives (AA&E).

(2) Ensure that DA Form 3749, Equipment Receipt, is issued for each POW and DA Form 2062, Hand Receipt, is issued for all privately owned ammunition stored by the unit.

(3) Establish limits on the quantity and type of privately owned ammunition stored in the arms room, based upon availability of space and safety considerations.

(4) Adhere to procedures in AR 710-2, Supply Policy Below the National Level, and DA PAM 710-2-1, Using Unit Supply System (Manual Procedures), to account for and inventory POWs and ammunition. POWs and ammunition will be inventoried in conjunction with and at the same frequency as military weapons and ammunition.

(5) Process unauthorized AA&E and Generally Prohibited Weapons (as defined under California Penal Code 16590) IAW AR 190-5, Evidence Procedures.

(6) Ensure physical security inspections are conducted IAW AR 190-11, Physical Security of Arms, Ammunition, and Explosives, generally every eighteen months.

(7) Post applicable local regulations and state and local law information on ownership, registration, and possession of firearms and ammunition on unit bulletin boards. The posting of this regulation and 'California Firearms Laws Summary' meets this requirement. 'California Firearms Laws Summary' may be found at: <u>https://oag.ca.gov/firearms</u>

(8) Brief all newly assigned personnel on this regulation. All personnel will be made aware of any material changes.

e. All Personnel. Any person with knowledge regarding the loss, theft, recovery, or unauthorized possession, storage, transport, use, or sale of a POW or ammunition on Fort Irwin will notify the Police Desk at (760) 380-2707/8056. If immediate response is deemed necessary, call 911.

#### Chapter 3 Registration

#### **3-1.** Applicability

a. It is unlawful and a criminal offense for any person to carry or possess any POW while on Fort Irwin unless such item is previously registered with the DES IAW the sections of this regulation. External law enforcement personnel in the performance of their duties are exempt from this requirement. \*\*\*ROTATIONAL UNIT PERSONNEL ON ORDERS TO THE NTC ARE NOT AUTHORIZED TO PURCHASE WEAPONS FROM AAFES WHILE HERE FOR TRAINING\*\*\*

b. All POWs brought onto Fort Irwin will be locally registered. Local weapons registration is conducted at the Fort Irwin Police Station (Bldg. 326). All personnel (military and civilian) residing and storing firearms on Fort Irwin are required to register their POWs within 24 hours of introducing the weapon onto the installation. Personnel not residing on Fort Irwin may bring a firearm onto Fort

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

Irwin for the express purpose of authorized target practice and recreational use, however, all weapons brought onto post for these purposes, must be registered with the Provost Marshal prior to being introduced onto the installation.

#### **3-2. Registration Procedures**

a. Personnel requiring weapons registration will complete NTC Form 655, Registration of Privately Owned Weapons, and email it to the weapons registration box at <u>usarmy.irwin.imcom.mbx.weapons-registration@mail.mil</u> or hand deliver it to the Desk Sergeant at Bldg. 326 for completion of a background check and registration in ALERTS. If the registration form is emailed, the message must be encrypted as the form contains Personally Identifiable Information (PII). NTC Form 655 is available on the NTC website at or at building 326. The form is fillable and should be completed digitally. Illegible hand written forms will not be accepted.

b. Upon completion of registration in ALERTS, the form will be returned to the registrant who will furnish it to the applicable unit commander/director. The commander/director will determine eligibility for POW possession/ownership and the location of storage. Commanders/directors will only approve requests for POW possession/storage after verifying:

(1) Proof of legal ownership of the firearm.

(2) The individual has received appropriate safety training on the use and storage of the firearm and is knowledgeable of federal, state, and local laws and regulations concerning the possession, use, storage and transportation of the firearm.

(3) A favorable background check has been completed.

(4) The individual is not prohibited from possessing a firearm. Per AR 190-11 and HQDA EXORD 240-18, personnel prohibited from possessing a firearm include:

(a) Any person convicted of a felony.

(b) Any person convicted in any court of any crime of domestic violence (misdemeanor or felony).

(c) Any person who is a fugitive from justice including AWOL/Desertion while other charges were pending.

(d) Any person who has been convicted in any court of possession, use, or sale of marijuana, dangerous or narcotic drugs. The term convicted includes nonjudicial punishment under UCMJ, Article 15.

(e) Any person who is presently declared as mentally incompetent or who is presently committed to any mental institution.

c. Commanders/directors will document their determination on NTC Form 655. The form will then be emailed to the weapons registration box at <u>usarmy.irwin.imcom.mbx.weapons-</u> registration@mail.mil or returned to the Desk Sergeant at Bldg. 326 within 10 calendar days. A copy of the form will be:

(1) Provided to the registrant to accompany the weapon(s).

(2) Maintained on file within the unit.

(3) Provided to the armorer if the approved storage location is the unit armory.

d. The Weapons Registration Clerk, will verify the information entered in ALERTS conforms to the information entered on NTC Form 655, and complete the Registration Clerk's portion of the form.

e. Personnel not residing on Fort Irwin may bring a firearm onto Fort Irwin for the express purpose of authorized target practice and recreational use, however, all weapons must first be registered with the DES prior to being introduced onto the installation. The registration form (NTC Form 655, Registration of Privately-Owned Weapons) will be presented to the guards at the Installation Access Control Point (IACP) to verify the weapon(s) is registered. Personnel without the

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

registration form will not be allowed to bring the weapon onto the installation. Target practice and recreational shooting will be conducted only at the Fort Irwin Sportsman's Range, military range facilities, or at the Morale, Welfare and Recreation (MWR) Skeet and Trap range and in compliance with the instructions of designated supervisory personnel. All personnel engaged in these activities will present proof of registration to facility/range supervisory personnel prior to conducting activities with the firearm.

## 3-3. Transfer of Ownership or Storage Location

In the event of a weapon's transfer of ownership or a change of storage location, the owner will submit an updated weapons registration form within 24 hours in order to amend the registration record. Note: Most firearm transfers (including the loan of a firearm) must be completed through a licensed firearm dealer pursuant to Cal. Penal Code § 27545.

#### 3-4. Clearing

When personnel who store POWs on the installation depart (e.g. PCS or ETS), their clearing process shall include Weapons Registration at the Police Desk (Bldg. 326).

#### **3-5.** Weapons Exempt from Registration

The following weapons are authorized and need not be registered on Fort Irwin:

a. Bows and arrows and crossbows.

b. Air guns.

c. Trophy weapons that have been rendered permanently inoperative.

d. Knives, swords, sabers, or military blades devices that are mounted or otherwise used only for decoration, display or ceremony.

e. Slingshots.

f. Hunting or fishing knives when utilized for these purposes.

NOTE: The use of authorized non-firearm weapons (e.g. BB guns, slingshots, bow and arrows, etc.) are prohibited within 100 meters of inhabited areas.

#### 3-6. California Law

a. Per section 17000 of the California Penal Code, non-resident Active Duty Military personnel who are not California residents are exempt from registering their firearms in California. Newly arriving California residents must report their ownership of firearms to the California DOJ or sell/transfer them in accordance with California law, within 60 days of bringing the firearm into the state. Active duty California residents who bring firearms into the state must submit a New Resident Firearm Ownership Report (BOF 4010A), along with a nominal fee (\$19 at the time of this writing), to the DOJ. Forms are available at licensed firearms dealers, the Department of Motor Vehicles or on-line at the DOJ website at <a href="http://oag.ca.gov/firearms/forms">http://oag.ca.gov/firearms/forms</a>. Forms may also be completed and submitted electronically via the internet at <a href="https://CFARS.doj.ca.gov">https://CFARS.doj.ca.gov</a>.

b. Fort Irwin is a concurrent jurisdiction installation which means that both California and Federal laws apply on the installation. The command is obliged to enforce whichever law is more stringent. As a general rule, California no longer permits the possession of personal assault weapons. California laws and legislation regarding firearms are frequently revised. It is recommended that the California DOJ BOF website <u>http://oag.ca.gov/firearms</u> be visited regularly for guidance.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## Chapter 4 Storage

#### 4-1. Sponsorship

Sponsorship is an essential part of integrating Soldiers into their units. As part of the sponsorship process units will ensure incoming Soldiers understand, prior to their reporting, the procedures and requirements for registering and storing POWs on Fort Irwin and will assist them in the process from start to finish, to include providing NTC Form 655 as early as practical.

## 4-2. Newly Reporting Soldiers

All POWs brought onto post by newly reporting Soldiers will be secured in an arms room or a GSAapproved Class 5 security container designed for weapons storage, until the commander authorizes an alternate storage location. POWs will not be stored at the Landmark Inn. Upon arrival, the sponsoring unit will immediately take custody of any POW regardless if the Soldier is authorized housing unless the POW is stored off post. Soldiers who are authorized housing will not be allowed to draw his/her weapon until after signing for housing, and then only with his/her Commanders authorization on NTC Form 655. Soldiers will be directed to complete NTC Form 655 and email it to the weapons registration box or deliver it to the Police Desk at building 326 within 24 hours of arrival. Under no circumstances will the weapon(s) be brought into building 326 for registration purposes. Gaining units without a weapons storage facility will maintain established procedures for the storage of POWs in an alternate arms room or GSA-approved Class 5 safe. Newly reporting Soldiers who have not yet been assigned to a unit, are considered in transit, and may temporarily store their POWs in their vehicle providing the weapon is secured as described in section 5-1 of this regulation and the vehicle is locked.

## 4-3. Storage in Unit Arms Rooms

a. Commanders/Directors will develop clearly defined procedures for the storage of POWs and ammunition in unit arms rooms/GSA-approved Class 5 safes to include record keeping, inventory and receiving/issuing procedures. At a minimum, procedures outlined in this regulation and AR 190-11 will be adhered to. All POW's and ammunition will be stored in a locked container, separately from military arms and ammunition, and afforded the same level of security as military arms and ammunition. Unit Commanders/Directors will establish limits on the quantity and types of personally owned ammunition stored in an arms rooms based upon the availability of space and ammunition licensing and safety considerations.

b. DA Form 3749, Equipment Receipt, will be prepared in duplicate copy by the Armorer for each POW stored in the unit arms room. DA Form 2062, Hand Receipt, will be prepared in duplicate copy by the Armorer for privately owned ammunition stored in the unit arms room. DA Form 2062 may be used when a POW is being temporarily stored in an alternate arms room, awaiting transfer to the gaining unit's armory. The Armorer will make a copy of the receipt(s) and label the copy "duplicate". The duplicate copy will be maintained in the arms room. The original DA Form 3749/DA Form 2062 will be retained by the owner and surrendered to the Armorer when the POW or ammunition is withdrawn from the arms room. The Armorer will tag each weapon and each POW and container of ammunition with the following:

- (1) Owners name, rank and phone number.
- (2) Fort Irwin registration number (weapons only).
- (3) Make, caliber or gauge, and serial number (weapons only).
- (4) Type and number of rounds (ammunition only).

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

c. POWs and ammunition will be inventoried in conjunction with, and at the same frequency of, inventory of government weapons and ammunition. The results of the inventory will be documented IAW DA PAM 710-2-1.

#### 4-4. Removal from Unit Arms Rooms

a. Personnel desiring to withdraw POWs/ammunition from the unit arms room will do so only upon written approval of the unit commander/director or designated representative. An example of the Memorandum for Removal of Privately Owned Weapon from the Unit Arms Room is provided in Appendix C. POWs/ammunition will not be withdrawn from the unit arms room prior to completion of POW registration. All applicable federal, state and local safety and security regulations will be adhered to when in possession of POWs.

b. The following procedures will be followed for temporary removal of POWs and ammunition:

(1) The registered owner will prepare the removal authorization memorandum.

(2) Upon approval, the memorandum and the applicable DA Form 3749(s)/2062(s) will be furnished to the Armorer.

(3) The Armorer will maintain the memorandum and applicable DA Form 3749(s)/2062(s) until the POW/ammunition are returned to the armory.

c. The following procedures will be followed for permanent removal of POWs and ammunition:

(1) The registered owner will prepare the removal authorization memorandum.

(2) Upon approval, the memorandum and applicable DA Form 3749(s)/2062(s) will be furnished to the Armorer.

(3) The Armorer will maintain the memorandum until the next monthly sensitive item inventory at which time the memorandum will be provided to the inventory officer who will attach it to the inventory record.

#### 4-5. Residents

Soldiers who reside in Barracks, BEQ/BOQ or Geo-Bachelor Quarters, will have POWs secured in a unit arms room. Personnel assigned privatized housing may store POWs in their quarters provided they have their commander's written authorization on NTC Form 655, and the POWs are properly registered and secured. Firearms stored in privatized housing will be secured in either a locked container or secured with a trigger lock. Ammunition for the firearm will be secured separately from the firearm in a locked container.

#### Chapter 5 Transportation

#### 1 unsportation

## 5-1. Vehicle Transport

Authorized POWs and ammunition may be transported in a vehicle, secured in the trunk compartment. For vehicles without a trunk, firearms will be encased in a locked container other than the glove compartment or console and carried in such a manner that they will not be readily available to the driver or passenger(s). The term "locked container" means a secure container which is fully enclosed and locked by a padlock, key lock, combination lock, or similar locking device. Commercially-available trigger locks and other security devices are also strongly recommended as supplements. Firearms in transit are required to be unloaded. The route to the destination will be the most direct route. Except as stipulated in section 4-2, vehicles containing firearms will not be left unattended. A completed NTC Form 655 will be carried while the weapon is in transit and will be presented to law enforcement personnel upon request and to Installation Access Control Point (IACP) personnel when entering the installation. Authorized reasons for transporting weapons and ammunition include:

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

a. Movement between place of purchase, repair, or acquisition and the authorized storage area.

b. Target shooting or off-post hunting.

c. Employment as a certified armed security officer or peace officer.

d. Authorized sporting events in which the weapon is used in connection with said event.

e. Change of physical address.

#### 5-2. Concealed Weapons

a. The carrying of a concealed weapon on the installation, whether or not a concealed carry permit has been obtained, is prohibited. A concealed weapon is any instrument used or designed for the purpose of inflicting grievous bodily harm that is carried on the person in such a way as to be hidden from ordinary view. Folding knives with blades shorter than 3 inches are excluded from this definition. Local, state, federal and military law enforcement personnel are excluded from this provision while in a duty status provided they are authorized to possess a concealed weapon while performing their assigned duties.

b. The carrying of a concealable firearm in the utility console or glove compartment of a motor vehicle is a violation of California law (Penal Code § 25140).

c. The carrying of an exposed, loaded or unloaded, firearm is also prohibited except while engaged in authorized sporting activities as described in section 3-2.e.

## Chapter 6 Prohibited Weapons/Accessories

#### 6-1. Prohibited Weapons/Accessories Listing

The following weapons/accessories are prohibited and will not be brought onto the installation: a. Any firearm on which the name of the manufacturer, serial number, or other marks of

identification have been changed, altered, removed, or obliterated.

b. Any weapon not legally obtained through purchase, importation, or received as a bona-fide gift.

c. Any weapon whose possession/use is prohibited by local, state, or federal law to include Generally Prohibited Weapons as defined under Cal. Penal Code § 16590.

d. Silencers, incendiary devices, explosives, military training ammunition (blank or otherwise), armor-piercing ammunition, and ammunition for weapons greater than .50-caliber that fire fixed ammunition (other than a shotgun).

e. Any instrument or weapon of the kind usually known as sand clubs, blackjacks, saps, metal knuckles, nun-chucks and throwing stars/discs. Throwing stars/discs and nun-chucks may be stored in the unit arms room, providing the owner can satisfactorily prove to the organization commander that he or she is involved in martial arts training, and is actively progressing in the various levels of training.

f. Spring blade knives, or any knife whose blade is automatically released by a spring mechanism or other mechanical device, or any knife having a blade which opens, falls, or is effected into a position by the force of gravity on an outward, downward, or centrifugal thrust of movement, or any knife with a blade length in excess of three inches and swords. This prohibition does not include knives, swords and other bladed devices identified in section 3-5 of this regulation.

#### 6-2. Storage and Disposition of Prohibited Weapons/Accessories

Storage of the items described above is prohibited except for judicial purposes or as necessitated by a commander/director disposing of these items IAW AR 195-5 and AR 190-11.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

Appendix A References

Section I Required Publications

AR 190-11 Physical Security of Arms, Ammunition, and Explosives

AR 195-5 Evidence Procedures

**AR 710-2** Supply Policy Below the National Level

**CPC 16590** California Penal Code Generally Prohibited Weapons

**DA PAM 710-2-1** Using Unit Supply System (Manual Procedures)

HQDA EXORD 240-18 Notification to Soldiers Affected By USC 922, Firearms and Ammunition Possession Prohibition

Section II Related Publications

**UCMJ** Uniform Code of Military Justice

#### Section III Prescribed Forms

Except where otherwise indicated below, the following forms are available as follows: DA Forms are available on the Army Publishing Directorate Web site at <u>http://www.apd.army.mil</u>. NTC Forms are available on the NTC Administrative Services Division SharePoint at <u>https://army.deps.mil/army/sites/NTC\_HQ/ASD/PubsandForms/SitePages/Home.aspx</u>. Copy and paste the link into a browser. A "DoD Email" CAC certificate must be utilized to access the Share Point.

DA Form 2062 Hand Receipt/Annex Number

Appendix A References Continued

**DA Form 3749** Equipment Receipt

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

NTC Form 655 Registration of Privately-Owned Firearms

Section IV Referenced Forms

BCIA 8016 Request for Live Scan Service

**BOF 4082** Military Assault Weapon Permit Application for Active Duty U.S. Military Personnel

**DA Form 2028** Recommendation Changes to Publications and Blank Forms

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

# Appendix B NTC Form 655 Registration of Privately-Owned Weapons

			ATELY-OV					00						
		FOR USE	OF THIS FOR	M, S					NENT IS	DES.				
	U. S. C. 3013, Army Regula ns, and Explosives,	ation 190-	14, Carrying o	of Fin		ACY ACT S and Use of F			ment Seca	urity Duties	, and AF	R 190-1	11, Physica	al Security o
RINCIPAL PUR leapon(s). To as COUTINE USE: I irisdiction or con	POSE: Used for private ide sist the Commander in carr Information is furnished to o rourrent jurisdiction is applic w enforcement, wildlife cons	ying out e riminal jus able. The	ffective law en stice elements se include: FB	nforce outs BI; US	ement, ide the 3 Cust	, troop safety, e Department oms Services	and crim of Defen ; Bureau	ne prevention se for invest of Alcohol, 1	n program igation an Fobacco a	s. d prosecut nd Firearm	ion whe is; US D	n such listrict (	cases fall Courts; US	within their
	OLUNTARY; however, fail		vide necessar	y info	ormatic		n denial d	of registration	۱.	aweniorce	ment ay	pericies	s.	
overnment emai	will complete the registratio il account. ALL BLOCKS M	IUST BE F	FULLY COMPL	LETE	ÉD. lft	he form cann	ot be em	ailed, hand d	eliver it to	the Weap	ons Reg	gistratio	on Clerk in	
. The command Veapons Registr ). Weapons Reg	Registration Clerk will cond ler/director will: 1) Verify the ration Clerk, building 328; 3) istration Clerk will register w	e registrati ) Provide a veapon(s)	on requirement a copy to the n , sign and star	nts lis regist mp th	sted in trant an te form	Section VI ha nd retain a co n and return a	we been py in unit copy to f	met, specify t files. The or the registran	storage k iginal will l t and com	ocation, sig	n, and d by the	date: 2)	) Return the	e form to the -transferable
. Il the designation	ed weapons storage locatio		SECTION II			-								
1. NAME OF R	EGISTRANT/OWNER (La	ast, First,	Middle)		2. N/	AME OF SP	ONSOR	(Last, First,	Middle)(l	f Applicab	le)	3. RAI	NK/STATU	JS
4. FULL SSN	5. DOB (mm/dd/yyyy)	6. AGE	7. GENDER		8. H	EIGHT (inche	es) 9.	WEIGHT (p	ounds)	10. EYE	COLO		11. HAIF	R COLOR
12. EMAIL ADD	DRESS	•				13. WOR	K PHON	IE (w/area o	ode)	14. HOI	ME/CEL		DNE (with	area code)
	REET ADDRESS (physica	Jaddrac	-1		18 /	APT/UNIT#					10	. STA	-	ZIP CODE
IS. HOME STR	CET ADDRESS (physica	al address	»)		10.7	AF 17UNIT#	17. CIT	r				5. STA	IE 19.	ZIP CODE
20. ORGANIZA	TION (Company/Battalion/T	roop/Squ	adron/) / DIRE	СТС	RATE			21. DUT	Y/HOME	STATION	22	. STA	TE 23.	ZIP CODE
24. Rank/Nam	E OF COMMANDER / DIRE	ECTOR (L	ast, First, Mide	dle)	25	5. COMMAN	DER / DI	IRECTOR V	VORK EN	IAIL	26. W	ORK F	PHONE (w	/area code
			SECTI	ON	Ш-У	VEAPON(S	DESC	RIPTION						
SERIAL	TYPE WEAPON (Rifle Shotgun) AND TYPE OF													
NUMBER	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S		-	KE A	ND M	ODEL	CAL	LIBER/GAU	IGE	FIN	IISH		OVERALL	
NUMBER		emi, etc.)	3	KE A	ND M	ODEL	CAI	LIBER/GAU	•	FIN	IISH	•		
NUMBER		emi, etc.)	; ; ;	KE A	ND M		CAI	LIBER/GAU		FIN	IISH	_		
NUMBER		iemi, etc.)					CAI	LIBER/GAU	•	FIN	IISH	•		
		iemi, etc.)							• • •			•	OVERALL	LENGT
ITH IZE A SEI	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S	emi, etc.)	] ] ] ] ED REGISTI SECTION I	RAT	TION F	EORM JE AD	DITION	IAL LINES	T T T T FOR WE	APONS F	REGIST	• • • • •	OVERALL	
UTILIZE A SEI Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S Bolt, Pump, Antique, S BARATE AND EULLY Co g personally owned weapons a, Storage Location, etc) multiple carried with the weapon to	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister t hour	TION F REGI them w to Di the aut	EORM IE AD ISTRANT/O ISTRANT/O ES. Firearms 1 horized storaj	DITION WNER s with the yel locatio	IAL LIMES SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr and transpo		APONS F mcy Service . Firearms v	REGISI es (DES) will not i		OVERALL ON ARE in changes in ied conceal	REQUIRE registration
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and underst	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S Bolt, Pump, Antique, S BARATE AND FULLY CO g personally owned weapons a, Storage Location, etc.) mu	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister t hour	TION F REGI them w to Di the aut	EORM IE AD ISTRANT/O ISTRANT/O ES. Firearms 1 horized storaj	DITION WNER s with the yel locatio	IAL LIMES SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr and transpo		APONS F acy Servici Firearms ort Irwin. N	REGISI es (DES) will not i		OVERALL ON ARE in changes in ied conceal	REQUIRE registration led. This
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and undersi REGISTRANT/ legistrant will em	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister 1 hour from ulatio	TION F REGI them w to DI the aut on 190-	EORM IE AL STRANT/O vithin 24 hour ES. Firearms ' thorized storaj chorized storaj n) governing	DITION WNER s with the will not b ge locatio this form	IAL I INFS. SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr n and transpo and firearms		APONS 6 ency Servic . Firearms ort Irwin. N	REGISI es (DES will not fy signat		OVERALL ON ARE J changes in jed conceal low indicat	REQUIRE registration led. This es that I have
Personnel storin (BTS, PCS, Sale registration will read and underst REGISTRANT// legistrant will em 	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister 1 hour from ulatio	TON F REGI them w is to DI the aut on 190-	EORM IE AI STRANT/C rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms v thorized storaj -1) governing Lmll (encrypt l	DUTION WNER s with the will not b ge locatio this form	IAL LINES. SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr n and transpo and firearms nding) or har	FOR WE     FOR WE     JRE     of Emerge     oop billets     ride on Fo     s     DA	APONS F acy Servic. Firearms of Irwin. N TE to the Weap	PEG/SI es (DES will not fy signat	TRATI ). Any be can ture be gistratio -2707	OVERALL ON ARE changes in ied conceal low indicat	REQUERE REQUERE registration led. This es that I have Building 324
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and undersi REGISTRANT/( legistrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC. ECTION V-CO	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister t hour from ulatio	CION F REGI them w s to Di the aut m 190- @mail @mail @mail W W wrship	EORM IE AD STRANT/O rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms 1 thorized storag thorized storag thorized storag thorized storag thorized storage thorized st	DUTTION WINER s with the will not b ge location this form eefore see	IAL INES SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr in and transpo and firearms and firearms nding) or han TION CLERM		APONS F ncy Servici Firearms ont Irwin. N TE to the Weap (78 URE (76 p of the at	es (DES will not fy signar oons Rep 0) 380 0) 380 00 380	Constant of the second se	OVERALL ON ARE J changes in ied conceal low indicat on Clerk In apons. 2.	EURGTH REQUIRED registration es that I hav Building 328 DATE The
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will REGISTRANT/K registrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC ECTION V- Co ggistrant is not 1 om justice; a co ventally incomp	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT V - I ister t hour from ulation atton	@mail @mail W w rship f the fit	EORM IE AD STRANT/O rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms ( thorized stora) thorized stora) (Intl (encrypt I EAPONS RE Requirement ollowing: a fe possession, us possession, us The registra	DITION WINER s with the will not b ge locatio this form GISTRA dts. 1. Pr lony con e, or salu	INTERPORT		APONS F mcy Servici. Firearms off Irwin. N TE to the Weap (76 URE (76 URE (76 Or the at or convict er dangere er dangere	es (DES will not fy signat ons Rep 0) 380 0) 380 0 00 0 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 0	Image: Constraint of the second	OVERALL ON ARE J changes in ied conceal low indicat on Clerk In apons. 2 ic violences drugs; orty riate safety	EURGTH REQLIRE registration red. This es that I hav Building 32# DATE The :; a fugitive is declared y training o
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and undersi REGISTRANT// egistrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC. PRECLUDE INO APPLIC. egistrant is not om justice; a co entally incomp te use and stor rearm(s) (NTC	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I bour from ulation atton wne atton wne tituti tituti ary -	CONF REGI them w s to Di the aut m 190- @mail m s to po f the fr the po on. 3. , state tandbox	EORM IE AI STRANT/C rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms v thorized storaj -1) governing Lmll (encrypt I EAPONS RE Requirement EAPONS RE Requirement sessession, us The registra os clocal law och apply). I	DITION WNER s with the will not b ge locatio this form GISTRAT GISTRAT GISTRAT domy con e, or sall tt (if a so s'ordinan have rev	IAL LINES. SIGNATU Directorate e stored in transport and transport and firearms noting) or har TION CLERR roof of legal me of marijua oldier or farm noces concer risewed any		APONS F acy Servici. Firearms of Irwin. N TE of the Weap of the Weap of the Weap of convice of the at or convice er dangerc er) has rec possession prossession provide at	es (DES will not fy signal 0) 380 0) 380 00 380 over list ous or n seived a n, use, a round d	P     P	OVERALL ON ARE changes in jed conceal low indicat apons. 2. ic violence chrugs; or riate safety insportatio M. Jinform	EVALUATE A CONTRACT OF CONTRACT ON CONTRAC
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and underst REGISTRANT// legistrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC, ECTION V- Co egistrant is not om justice; a co entally incomp te use and storr rearm(s) (NTC igning below,	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT V - I bour from ulation atton wne atton wne tituti tituti ary H Doe	CION F REGI s to Di the autor s to Di the autor n 190- www rship www rship rship f the fit the po con.a. s tate anadot s Not	EORM IE AD STRANT/O rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms v thorized storaj 1) governing Lmll (encrypt I EAPONS RE Requiremen ollowing: a fe pssession, us The registra , or local law	DITION WNER s with the will not b ge locatio this form before see GISTRAT ths. 1. Pr dony conte e, or sail nt (if a so sfordinan have rev above re	IAL LINES. SIGNATU Directorate e stored in transport and transport and firearms noting) or har TION CLERR roof of legal me of marijua oldier or farm noces concer risewed any		APONS F ancy Service Firearms ort Irwin. N TE (76 URE (76 URE (76 URE (76 rothe at bor convict er dangero er dangero port beack portsession or convict er dangero portsession or portsession or portsession	es (DES will not fy signat 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 00 380 000 000 000 000 000 000 0000000000	TRATI      TRATI	OVERALL OVERALL Changes in ied conceal low indicat on Clerk In apons. 2. ic violence ic violence ic violence ic violence ic violence is drugs; or riate safety MJ inform weapon SECTIO	ELENGTI REQUIRE REQUIRE registration led. This es that I hav Building 326 DATE The is declared y training on n of the ation. By ((5) listed. N I)
Personnel storin (ETS, PCS, Sale registration will read and underst REGISTRANT// egistrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC ECTION V- Co egistrant is not om justice; a cr hentally incomp the use and stor- rearm(s) (NTC igning below, WEAPON(S) W	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister 1 ister 1 ister 1 atton atton atton wne i, for i, for i	CION IF REGI them w is to DI the aut in 190- @mail W W rship fi the fi the po on. 3. , state s Not	EORM IE AI STRANT/C rithin 24 hour ES. Firearms v thorized storaj -1) governing Lmll (encrypt I EAPONS RE Requirement EAPONS RE Requirement sessession, us The registra os clocal law och apply). I	COLITION WNER s with the will not b ge locatio this form before see GISTRAT tts. 1. Pr lony con sal nt (if a so s/ordinan have ree above re	IAL I INES SIGNATU Directorate e stored in tr n and transpo and firearms and firearms nding) or har TION CLERI roof of legat viction; a m iviction; a m noes concer e of marijua oldier or fam noes concer revewed any equirement POST HOU		APONS F ancy Service . Firearms ort Irwin. N TE (76 URE (76 URE (76 URE (76 Port He at hor convict er dangero prof the at port service prof the at hor convict er dangero prof secsion prof secsio	es (DES will not fy signat 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 00 380 000 0000000000	TRATI      TRATI	OVERALL ON ARE changes in ied conceal low indicat on Clerk In apons. 2. ic violence c violence c drugs; or riate safet nsportatio MJ inform e weapon	Building 326 DATE DATE The is declared y training on n of the ation. By (s) listed. N I)
Personnel storim (BTS, PCS, Sale registration will read and undersi REGISTRANT// egistrant will em RETURNS D PRECLUDE NO APPLIC/ ECTON V- Co egistrant is not om justice; a cr bentally incomp the use and stor rearm(s) (NTC igning below, WEAPON(S) W COMMANDER /	(Bolt, Pump, Antique, S (Bolt,	emi, etc.)		RAT IV - I ister 1 ister 1 ister 1 atton atton atton wne i, for ittuti ideral ary H Doe OON	@mail @mail @mail @www.sto.Di the autor on 190- gemail www.sto.Di the poly on 3. , state landoor f he fi the fi the poly on 3. , state landoor f the fi the poly on 3. , state landoor f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the poly f the poly f the fi the poly f the fi the poly f the poly f the poly f the fi the poly f the poly f the fi the poly f the poly f the fi the poly f the p	EORM IE AD STRANT/C ithin 24 hour ES. Firearms thorized stora; -1) governing Lmll (encrypt I EAPONS RE Requiremen ollowing: a fe Sesession, us The registra , or local law pook apply). I meet the DER / DIREC	CTOR SI	INTERPOSE CONTRACTOR INTERPOSE CONCERNING IN CLERING IN		APONS F ancy Service. Firearms on Irwin. N TE (76 URE (76 URE (76 Pof the at to ro convict er dangero er dangero possessior port blas rec possessior port blas rec possessior port blas rec possessior DDRESS I TE	es (DES will not fy signat 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 0) 380 00 380 000 0000000000	TRATI      TRATI	OVERALL OVERALL Changes in ied conceal low indicat on Clerk In apons. 2. ic violence ic violence ic violence ic violence ic violence is drugs; or riate safety MJ inform weapon SECTIO	EEQUIREI REQUIREI registration led. This es that I hav Building 326 DATE The is declared y training of n of the ation. By (5) listed. N I)

NTC FORM 655, MAY 2021

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## Appendix C Withdrawal of Privately Owned Weapon/Ammunition from the Arms Room Request

MEMORANDUM FOR Commander Unit Concerned, Fort Irwin, CA 92310

SUBJECT: Request for Authorization to Remove Privately Owned Weapons/Ammunition from the Unit Arms Room

1. Request authorization to remove the following weapon/ammunition registered in my name from the arms room:

Type (Shotgun, Rifle, Pistol, Sword, Ammunition)	Make	Caliber	Serial Number (Qty. for Ammunition)
			(Qty. for Animumuon)

2. The above listed item(s) will be removed on \_\_\_\_\_ (date) and returned on \_\_\_\_\_ (date).

3. The reason for removal is \_\_\_\_\_\_.

REQUESTORS NAME RANK, USA Unit

CDR, Unit Concerned, Fort Irwin, CA 92310

For REQUESTOR, Unit Assigned, Fort Irwin, CA 92310

Approval is Granted/Denied.

COMMANDER'S NAME RANK, BRANCH Commanding

CF: Armorer

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

Glossary

Section I Abbreviations

AA&E Arms, Ammunition & Explosives

AAFES Army and Air Force Exchange Service

ALERTS Army Law Enforcement Reporting and Tracking System

**AR** Army Regulation Assault Rifle

AWOL Absent Without Leave

**BEQ** Bachelor Enlisted Quarters

**BOF** Bureau of Firearms

**BOQ** Bachelor Officers' Quarters

**CPC** California Penal Code

**DA** Department of the Army

**DES** Directorate of Emergency Services

**DOJ** Department of Justice

**ETS** Expiration of Term of Service

IACP Installation Access Control Point

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## **Glossary Continued**

IAW In accordance with

MAL Master Authorization List

MSC Major Subordinate Command

**MWR** Morale, Welfare and Recreation

NTC National Training Center

**PII** Personally Identifiable Information

**PCS** Permanent Change of Station

**POW** Privately Owned Weapon

SN Serial Number

**UCMJ** Uniform Code of Military Justice

Section II Terms

# Air Gun A weapon consisting of a tube from which a projectile is expelled by the force of compressed air.

# Ammunition

The projectiles with their fuses, propelling charges, or primers fired from guns.

## Arms

A weapon that will or is designated to expel a projectile or flame by the action of the explosive, and the frame or receiver of any such weapon.

## **Armor-Piercing Ammunition**

Ammunition is designed primarily for the purpose of penetrating metal or body armor.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## **Glossary Continued**

## Blackjack

A hand weapon typically consisting of a piece of leather-enclosed metal with a strap or springy shaft for a handle.

## Club

An instrument specially designed, made, or adapted for the purpose of inflicting serious bodily injury or death by striking a person with the instrument, and includes, but is not limited to, a blackjack, mace, nightstick, or tomahawk. *Note: "club" does not include clubs attached to displays and used for display purposes only.* 

## Concealed

Not openly discernible to the ordinary observation of a reasonable person.

#### **Cross Bow**

A weapon consisting of a bow fixed transversely on a stock having a trigger.

#### Explosive

Any chemical compound, mixture or device, the primary or common purpose of which is to function by explosion. The term includes, but is not limited to, individual land mines, demolition charges, blocks of explosives (dynamite, trinitrotoluene, C–4, and other high explosives), and other explosives consisting of 10 pounds or more; for example, gunpowder or nitroguanidine.

#### Firearm

Any device designed, made, or adapted to expel a projectile through a barrel by using energy generated by an explosive or burning substance or any device readily convertible to that use. The term includes "handguns." An antique "firearm" is any firearm manufactured prior to 1899 and is subject to the same rules as any other firearm, to include any firearm that is loaded only through the muzzle.

## Handgun

Any firearm that is designed, made, or adapted to be fired with one hand.

#### Knuckles

Any instrument that consists of finger rings or guards made of a hard substance designed, made, or adapted for the purpose of inflicting bodily injury or death by striking a person with a fist enclosed in the knuckles.

#### **Nun-Chucks**

A Japanese martial arts weapon consisting of two hardwood sticks joined together by a chain, rope, or thong.

#### **Personally Identifiable Information**

The term "personally identifiable information" refers to information which can be used to distinguish or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, biometric records, etc. alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden name, etc.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021

## **Glossary Continued**

## Sap

A flat, beavertail-shaped leather impact weapon that is weighted with lead on at least one end.

## Silencer

Any device designed, made, or adapted to muffle the report of a firearm.

## **Throwing Star**

A weapon in the form of a star with projecting blades or points, propelled by throwing.

## Section III Special Abbreviations and Terms This section contains no entries.

NTC Regulation 190-1 • 17 May 2021